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Notice of Hearing and Issuance of Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 for Administrative 
Civil Liability Against KB Home for Violations of Clean Water Act Section 301 and 
California Water Code Section 13376 

Mr. Mertzel: 

Enclosed find Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 (Complaint) for Administrative Civil Liability 
against KB Home (Discharger) for $875,166 for violations of California Water Code 
section 13376 and federal Clean Water Act section 301. The alleged violations are 
described in the Complaint and the attached Technical Analysis to the Complaint. 
Pursuant to Water Code section 13323, the California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, San Diego Region (San Diego Water Board) shall hold a hearing on the 
Complaint no later than ninety (90) days after it is issued.· 

Waiver of Hearing 
You may elect to waive your right to a hearing before the San Diego Water Board. 
Waiver of the hearing constitutes admission of the violations alleged in the Complaint 
and the acceptance of the assessment of civil liability as set forth in the Complaint. For 
the San Diego Water Board to accept the waiver of your right to a public hearing, you 
must sign, as the Legally Responsible Person for KB Home, the enclosed waiver form 
with Option 1 selected, and submit it to the San Diego Water Board by 5:00p.m. on 
May 2, 2016. 

Public Hearing 
Alternatively, if you elect to proceed to a public hearing, a hearing is tentatively 
scheduled to be held at the San Diego Water Board meeting on June 22, 2016. The 
meeting is scheduled to convene at the San Diego Water Board, 2375 Northside Drive, 
Suite 100, San Diego, California at 9:00a.m. At that time, the San Diego Water Board 
will accept testimony, public comment, and decide whether to affirm, reject, or modify 
the proposed liability, or whether to refer the matter for judicial civil action. 

HENRY ABARBANEL, PH.D, CHAIR I DAVID GIBSON, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

2375 Northside Drive. Suite 100, San Diego, California 92108-2700 I www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandlego 
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Mr. Ron Mertzel 
KB Home 

- 2- April 22, 2016 

ACL Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 

Enclosed is the recommended hearing procedure for the San Diego Water Board to 
follow in conducting the hearing. Please note that comments on the proposed 
procedure are due by May 2, 2016, to the San Diego Water Board's advisory attorney, 
Catherine Hagan, at the address in.dicated in the hearing procedure. 

Please submit all written documents as Portable Document Format (PDF) files to 
sandiego@waterboards.ca.gov. In the subject line of any response, please include the 
reference number CW-826199:cmeans. For questions or comments, please contact 
Christopher Means by telephone at (619) 521-3365, or by email at 
Christopher.Means@waterboards.ca.gov. 

Respectfully, 

JAMES G .. SMITH 
Assistant Executive Officer 

JGS:cmc:cjm 

Enclosures: 

1. ACL Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 with attached Technical Analysis and 
Appendices 

2. ACL Complaint Fact Sheet 
3. Proposed Hearing Procedure 
4. Waiver of Public Hearing Form 

cc: sent via email: 

-· 

David Boyers, State Water Resources Control Board, David.Boyers@waterboards.ca.gov 
Naomi Kaplowitz, State Water Resources Control Board, Naomi.Kaplowitz@waterboards.ca.gov 
Chiara Clemente, San Diego Water Board, cclemente@waterboards.ca.gov 
Eric Becker, San Diego Water Board, Eric.Becker@waterboards.ca.gov 
Lisa Honma, San Diego Water Board, Lisa.Honma@waterboards.ca.gov 
Jeremy Haas, San Diego Water Board, jhaas@waterboards.ca.gov 
Catherine Hagan, State Water Resources Control Board, chagan@waterboards.ca.gov 
Deborah Jayne, San Diego Water Board, Deborah.Jayne@waterboards.ca.gov 
Barry Jones, Helix Environmental Planning Inc., BarryJ@helixepi.net 
John Lormon, Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch LLP, john.lormon@procopio.com 
Kurt Bausback, KB Home, kbausback@kbhome.com 
Melanie Tymes, US Army Corps of Engineers, Melanie.B.Tymes@usace.army.mil 
Todd Snyder, County of San Diego, Todd.Snyder@sdcounty.ca.gov 
Jarrett Ramaiya, County of San Diego, jarrett.ramaiya@sdcounty.gov 
Sohail Bokhari, Pulte Homes, Sohaii.Bokhari@PulteGroup.com 
Kelly Fisher, CA Dept. of Fish & Wildlife, kfisher@wildlife.ca.gov 
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CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD 
SAN DIEGO REGION 

In the matter of: 

KB Home. 
Settler's Point Project, Lakeside Ca 
Unauthorized Discharge of Fill to Waters of 
the U.S./State 

PIN: SM-453268 

KB HOME IS HEREBY GIVEN NOTICE THAT: 

COMPLAINT NO. R9-2016-0092 
FOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY 

Noncompliance with 

California Water Code § 13376, 

and 

Clean Water Act § 301 

April 22, 2016 

1. KB Home (Discharger) is alleged to have violated provisions of law for which the 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region (San Diego 
Water Board) may impose civil liability pursuant to California Water Code (Water 
Code) section 13385. · 

2. This Administrative Civil Liability Complaint is issued under authority of Water 
Code section 13323. 

Background 

3. In May 2014, the Discharger began purchase negotiations for the Settler's Point 
property, located in Lakeside California in the eastern portion of the County of San 
Diego (Assessor Parcel Nos. 397-210-17, 397-212-01, 397-290-04, 397-291-01 
and 397-291-03). The Discharger closed escrow on the property on September 2, 
2014. 

4. Directly adjacent and to the northwest of the Settler's Point property is the 
Brightwater Ridge property, currently under the ownership of Pulte Home 
Corporation. This undeveloped 76.23 acre property contains five unnamed 
ephemeral streams that, after passing through an existing County-owned storm 
drain system, drain to Los Caches Creek, a water of the U.S. in the San Diego 
Hydrologic Unit, Lower San Diego Hydrologic Area, Caches Hydrologic Subarea 
(907.14). 

5. In August 2008, at the request of the County of San Diego, an offsite addition was 
made to the Settler's Point project. The County requested a "temporary street 
knuckle" to be constructed at the northwest corner of the Settler's Point project to 
provide secondary access to the Settler's Point project and connect the proposed 
onsite road to Wellington Hills Drive. 



ACL Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 
KB Home 
Settlers Point Project 

April 22, 2016 

6. On Decer:nber 5, 2014 the Discharger began grading activities that included the 
offsite street knuckle portion of the project. The grading activity resulted in the 
unauthorized discharge of fill and other construction material into waters of the 
U.S./State. The discharge of fill continued until final curb, gutter and paving for the 
street knuckle were completed on May 14, 2015. This constitutes an active 
discharge period of 161 days. 

7. On March 10, 2015 Pulte Home Corporation submitted a Clean Water Act (CWA) 
Section 401 Water Quality Certification application package for the Brightwater· 
Ranch project to the San Diego Water Board, to build a 66-unit, single-family 
residential subdivision, with four Homeowner Association maintained lots, and 
41.8 acres of open space. The application package included a preliminary 
jurisdictional delineation indicating the presence of waters of U.S./State in the 
street knuckle footprint. 

8. The preliminary jurisdictional delineation was conducted by Helix Environmental 
Planning Inc. on November 7, 2014 and concluded that the site had 0.05 acre 
(685 linear feet) of waters of the U.S. and State (ephemeral dry wash) under the 
jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), San Diego Water 
Board, and California Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW). The preliminary 
delineation identified an additional 0.12 acre (3, 710 linear feet) of non-federal 
waters of the State onsite. The 76.23 acre site contains five unnamed ephemeral 
drainages that are tributary to Los Coches Creek (Hydrologic sub area 907.14). 

9. In April 2015, during an initial San Diego Water Board r.eview of the Pulte Home 
Corporation certification application, Google Earth aerial imagery revealed that 
grading had been conducted offsite of the Settler's Point project boundary, and 
had impacted jurisdictional waters on the Brightwater Ranch Project. 

10. On July 1, 2015 staff from the USACE, San Diego Water Board, KB Home, Helix 
Environmental Planning, and County of San Diego met onsite to inspect the 
impacts and to verify the jurisdictional delineation. Results of the inspection 
confirmed that KB Home had not obtained any authorizations or permits from 
State (401 certification, Waste Discharge Requirements and Streambed Alteration 
Agreement) and Federal (404 permit) regulatory agencies prior to discharging fill 
into the ephemeral streams on the Brightwater property. 

11. On July 7, 2015 KB Home's environmental consultant reported to the San Diego 
Water Board that the grading operations associated with construction of the offsite 
stre·et knuckle impacted approximately 0.018 acre (278 linear feet) of jurisdictional 
waters of the U.S. and State. 

12. On August 18, 2015 the discharger reported that an estimated 350 cubic yards of 
fill were used for construction of the off-site street knuckle. That equates to the 
discharge of 70,691 gallons of fill to waters of the U.S. and State. 
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ACL Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 
KB Home 
Settlers Point Project 

April 22, 2016 

13. The Water Quality Control Plan for the San Diego Basin (Basin Plan) designates 
the following beneficial uses for surface waters in Los Caches Creek and it's 
tributaries: 

Industrial Service Supply (IND) 
Contact Water Recreation (REC-1) 
Non-contact Water Recreation (REC-2) 
Warm Freshwater Habitat (WARM) 
Wildlife Habitat (WILD) 

14. On August 13, 2015 the San Diego Water Board issued Notice of Violation No. 
R9-2015-0154 to the Discharger for the unauthorized discharge of fill to waters of 
the U.S./State. 

ALLEGED VIOLATIONS 

15. Section 301 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1311) and Water Code Section 
13376 prohibit the discharge of pollutants to surface water except in compliance 
with a permit for dredged and fill material. 

16. The San Diego Water Board Prosecution Team alleges that the Discharger 
violated Section 301 of the Clean Water Act and Water Code Section 13376 for a 
period of 161 days for the active discharge of fill material into Waters of the U.S. 
and State without a permit or Clean Water Act Section 401 water quality 
certification. The unauthorized activity resulted in the discharge of approximately 
70,691 gallons (or 350 cubic yards) of sediment and construction materials to 
Waters of the U.S./State. 

17. The details of these violations are set forth in full in the accompanying Technical 
Analysis, which is incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. 

MAXIMUM LIABILITY 

18. Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (a), a person who violates 
either Water Code section 13376, a waste discharge requirement, a basin plan 
prohibition, or a requirement of section 301 of the federal Clean Water Act is 
subject to administrative civil liability pursuant to Water Code section 13385, 
subdivision (c) 

.. . in an amount not to exceed the sum of both of the following: 
(1) Ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for each day in which the 
violation occurs. 
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KB Home 
Settlers Point Project 

April22, 2016 

(2) Where there is a discharge, any portion of which is not susceptible to 
cleanup or is not cleaned up, and the volume discharged but not cleaned 
up exceeds 1,000 gallons, an additional liability not to exceed ten dollars 
($10) multiplied by the number of gallons by which the volume discharged 
but not cleaned up exceeds 1, 000 gallons. 

19. Pursuant to Water Code Section 13385 subdivision (c), and as detailed in the 
attached Technical Analysis, the maximum.administrative civil liability for the 
alleged violation of Section 301 of the Clean Water Act and Water Code Section 
13376 is $2,306,910. 

MINIMUM LIABILITY 

20. Water Code section 13385, subdivision (e) requires that when pursuing civil 
liability under section 13385, "[a]t a minimum, liability shall be assessed at a level 
that recovers the economic benefits, if any, derived from the acts that constitute 
the violation." The State Water Board Enforcement Policy (Enforcement Policy) 
further instructs the Regional Water Boards to assess liability against a violator at 
least ten percent higher than the economic benefit realized from the violation, 
such that liabilities are not construed as the cost of doing business, and provide a 
meaningful deterrent to potential violators. 

21. As detailed in the accompanying Technical Analysis, and based on a calculated 
economic benefit of $38,601, the minimum liability amount the San Diego Water 
Board may assess the Discharger is $42,461. 

PROPOSED LIABILITY ASSESSMENT 

22. Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (e), in determining the amount 
of any civil liability imposed under Water Code section 13385(c), the San Diego 
Water Board shall consider the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the 
violations, whether the discharge is susceptible to cleanup or abatement, the 
degree of toxicity of the discharge; and with respect to the Discharger, the ability 
to pay, the effect on the Discharger's ability to continue in business, any voluntary 
cleanup efforts undertaken, any prior history of violations, the degree of 
culpability, economic benefit or savings, if any, resulting from the violations, and 
other matters as justice may require. 

23. The Enforcement Policy establishes a methodology for assessing administrative 
civil liability. The use of this methodology addresses the factors that are required 
to be considered when imposing a civil liability as outlined in Water Code section 
13385, subdivision (e). The required factors have been considered for the 
violations alleged herein using the methodology in the Enforcement Policy, as 
explained in detail in the Technical Analysis. 
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Settlers Point Project 

April 22, 2016 

24. · Based on consideration of the above facts, the applicable law, and after applying 
the penalty calculation methodology in section VI of the Enforcement Policy, the 
Prosecution Team recommends that the San Diego Water Board impose civil 
liability against the Discharger in the amount of $875,166 for the violations alleged 
herein and set forth in full in the accompanying Technical Analysis. · 

25. The assessed amount includes $16,996 for 299.75 hours of San Diego Water 
Board staff time to investigate and prepare the enforcement documents. Should 
this matter proceed to hearing, the San Diego Water Board may choose to 
increase the recommended liability to recover additional necessary staff costs 
accrued after this Complaint is issued and through the hearing. 

Signed pursuant to the authority delegated by the Executive Officer to the Assistant 
Executive Officer. 

Attachment: Technical Analysis and Appendices 

Party ID: 358094 
CIWQS Place ID: CW-826199 
SMARTS 10: SM-453268 
Violation IDs: 994273 
WOlD No: 9 37C0552 
Enforcement ID: 405422 
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CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL 
BOARD 

SAN DIEGO REGION 

TECHNICAL ANALYSIS 
for 

Administrative Civil Liability 
Contained in Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 

To 

KB Home 

For 

Noncompliance with 

Clean Water Act Section 301 

And 

California Water Code Section 13376 

Prepared by 

Christopher Means 
Environmental Scientist 

Compliance Assurance Unit 

April 22, 2016 
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Administrative Civil Liability Complaint 

Fact Sheet 

The California State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) and the California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region (San Diego Water Board) are 
authorized to issue complaints for civil liabilities under California Water Code (Water Code) 
section 13323 for violations of the Water Code. This document describes generally the 
process that follows the issuance of a complaint. 

The issuance of a complaint is the first step in the possible imposition of an order requiring 
payment of penalties. The complaint details the alleged violations including the appropriate 
Water Code citations, and it summarizes the evidence that supports the allegations. If you 
receive a complaint, you must respond timely as directed. If you fail to respond, a 
default order may be issued against you. The complaint is accompanied by a transmittal 
letter, a waiver options form, and a Hearing Procedure. Each document contains important 
information and deadlines. You should read each document carefully. A person issued a 
complaint is allowed to represent him or herself. However, legal advice may be desirable to 
assist in responding to the complaint. 

Parties 
The parties to a complaint proceeding are the San Diego Water Board Prosecution Team and 
the person(s) named in the complaint, referred to as the "Discharger(s)." The Prosecution 
Team is comprised of San Diego Water Board staff and management. Other interested 
persons may become involved and may become "designated parties." Only designated 
parties are allowed to submit evidence and participate fully in the proceeding. Other 
interested persons may play a more limited role in the proceeding and are allowed to submit 
comments. If the matter proceeds to a hearing, the hearing will be held before the San Diego 
Water Board (either the seven Governor appointed board members or the Executive Officer). 
Those who hear the evidence and rule on the matter act as judges. The San Diego Water 
Board is assisted by an Advisory Team, who provide advice on technical and legal issues. 
Both the Prosecution Team and the Advisory Team have their own attorney. Neither the 
Prosecution Team nor the Discharger or his/her representatives are permitted to 
communicate with the San Diego Water Board, or the Advisory Team about the complaint 
without the presence or knowledge of the other. This is explained in more detail in the 
Hearing Notice. 

Complaint Resolution Options 
Once issued, a complaint can lead to (1) withdrawal of the complaint; (2) withdrawal and 
reissuance; (3) payment and waiver; (4) settlement; or (5) hearing. 

Withdrawal may result if the Discharger provides information to the Prosecution Team that 
clearly and unmistakably demonstrates that a fundamental error exists in the information set 
forth in the complaint. 



ACL Complaint Fact Sheet 

If the Discharger intends to present arguments about its ability to pay it must provide reliable 
documentation to establish that ability or inability. The kinds of information that may be used 
for this purpose include: 

For an individual: 
1. Last three (3) years of signed federal Internal Revenue Service (IRS) income tax 

returns (IRS Form 1 040) including schedules; 
2. Members of household, including relationship, age, employment, and income; 
3. Current living expenses; 
4. Bank account statements; 
5. Investment statements; 
6. Retirement account statements; 
7. Life insurance policies; 
8. Vehicle ownership documentation; 
9. Real property ownership documentation; 
10. Credit card and line of credit statements; 
11 . Mortgage loan statements; and 
12. Other debt documentation. 

For a business: 
1. Copies of last three (3) years of company IRS tax returns, signed and dated; 
2. Copies of last three (3) years of company financial audits; 
3. Copies of last three (3) years of IRS tax returns of business principals, signed and 

dated; and 
4. Any documentation that explains special circumstances regarding past, current, or 

future financial conditions. 

For larger firms: 
1. Federal income tax returns for the last three (3) years,- specifically: 

a. IRS Form 1120-C for C Corporations; 
b. IRS Form 1120-S for S Corporations; or 
c. IRS Form 1065 for partnerships. 

2. A completed and signed IRS Form 8821. This allows the IRS to provide the State 
Water Board with a summary of the firm's tax returns that will be compared to the 
submitted income tax returns. This prevents the submission of fraudulent tax returns; 

3. The following information can be substituted if income tax returns cannot be made 
available: 
a. Audited Financial Statements for last three (3) years; 
b. A list of major accounts receivable with names and amounts; 
c. A list of major accounts payable with names and amounts; 
d. A list of equipment acquisition cost and year purchased; 
e. Ownership in other companies and percent of ownership for the last three (3) 

years; and 
f. Income from other companies and amounts for the last three (3) years. 
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CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD 
SAN DIEGO REGION 

PROPOSED DRAFT 

HEARING PROCEDURE FOR 
ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY COMPLAINT 

NO. R9-2016-0092 
ISSUED TO 

KB HOME 
SETTLER'S POINT PROJECT 

SCHEDULED FOR JUNE 22, 2016 

PLEASE READ THIS HEARING PROCEDURE CAREFULLY. FAILURE TO COMPLY 
WITH THE DEADLINES AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN MAY 
RESULT IN THE EXCLUSION OF YOUR DOCUMENTS AND/OR TESTIMONY. 

Background 
The Assistant Executive Officer of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, 
San Diego Region (San Diego Water Board) has issued an Administrative Civil Liability 
(ACL) Complaint pursuant to California Water Code (Water Code) sections 13323 and 
13385 against KB Home (Discharger) alleging it has violated California Water Code 
section 13376 and Federal Clean Water Act section 301. The ACL Complaint proposes 
that administrative civil liability in the amount of $875,166 be imposed as authorized by 
Water Code section 13385. Unless the Discharger waives its right to a hearing and 
pays the proposed liability, a hearing will be held before the San Diego Water Board on 
June 22, 2016, in San Diego. 

Purpose of Hearing 
The purpose of the hearing is to receive relevant evidence and testimony regarding the 
proposed ACL Complaint. At the hearing, the San Diego Water Board will consider 
whether to adopt, modify, or reject the proposed assessment. The hearing will be held 
at the San Diego Water Board office at 2375 Northside Drive, Suite 100, in San Diego. 
An agenda for the hearing will be issued at least ten (1 0) days before the hearing and 
will be posted on the San Diego Water Board's web page at: 
www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego. 



PROPOSED Hearing Procedure 
KB Home 
Settler's Point Project 
ACL Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 

Requesting Designated Party Status . 

April 22, 2016 

Persons who wish to participate in the hearing as a designated party, and are not 
already listed above, shall request party status by submitting a request in writing (with 
copies to the existing designated parties) no later than 5:00p.m. on May 2, 2016, to 
Catherine Hagan, Senior Staff Counsel, at the address set forth below. The request 
shall include an explanation of the basis for status as a designated party (e.g., how the 
issues to be addressed in the hearing and the potential actions by the San Diego Water 
Board affect the person), the contact information required of designated parties as 
provided below, and a statement explaining why the party or·parties designated above 
do not adequately represent the person's interest. Any opposition to the request must 
be submitted by 5:00p.m. on May 6, 2016. The parties will be notified by 5:00p.m. on 
May 12, 2016, as to whether the request has been granted or denied. 

Contacts 

Advisory Team: 1 

Catherine Hagan, Senior Staff Counsel 
State Water Resources Control Board, Office of Chief Counsel 
c/o San Diego Water Board 
2375 Northside Drive, Suite 100 
San Diego, CA 92108 
chagan@waterboards.ca.gov 
(619) 521-3012 

Deborah Jayne, Senior Environmental Scientist 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region 
2375 Northside Drive, Suite 100 
San Diego, CA 92108 
djayne@waterbo"ards.ca.gov 
(619) 516-1990 

Prosecution Team: 

Naomi Kaplowitz, Staff Counsel 
State Water Resources Control Board 
Office of Enforcement 
P.O. Box 100 
Sacramento, CA 95812 
Naomi.Kaplowitz@waterboards.ca.gov 
(916) 341-5677 

1 Additional staff may be designated as advisory staff with the Final Hearing Procedures. 
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PROPOSED Hearing Procedure 
KB Home 
Settler's Point Project 
ACL Complaint No. RS-2016-0092 

John J. Lormon, Esq. 
Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch LLP 
525 B Street, Ste. 2200 
San Diego, CA 92101 
John .lormon@procopio. com 
(619) 515-3217 

Separation of Functions 

April 22, 2016 

To help ensure the fairness and impartiality of this proceeding, the functions of those 
who will act in a prosecutorial role by presenting evidence for consideration by the San 
Diego Water Board (Prosecution Team) have been separated from those who will 
provide advice to the San Diego Water Board (Advisory Team). Members of the 
Advisory Team 1 include Catherine Hagan, Senior Staff Counsel, and Deborah Jayne, 
Senior Environmental Scientist. Members of the Prosecution Team are David Boyers, 
Assistant Chief Counsel, Naomi Kaplowitz, Staff Counsel; James Smith, Assistant 
Executive Officer; Jeremy Haas, Environmental Program Manager; Chiara Clemente, 
Senior Environmental Scientist; and Christopher Means, Environmental Scientist. 

Ex Parte Communications 
The designated parties and interested persons are forbidden from engaging in ex parte 
communications regarding this matter with members of the Advisory Team or members 
of the San Diego Water Board. An ex parte contact is any written or verbal 
communication pertaining to the investigation, preparation, or prosecution of the ACL 
Complaint between a member of a designated party or interested party on the one 
hand, and a San Diego Water Board member or an Advisory Team member on the 
other hand, unless the communication is copied to all other designated and interested 
parties (if written) or made at a proceeding open to all other parties and interested 
persons (if verbal). Communications regarding non-controversial procedural matters 
are not ex parte contacts and are not restricted. Communications among the 
designated and interested parties themselves are not ex parte contacts. 

Hearing Time Limits 
To ensure that all participants have an opportunity to participate in the hearing, the 
following time limits shall apply: each designated party shall have a combined sixty (60) 
minutes to present evidence, cross-examine witnesses (if warranted), and provide a 
closing statement; and each interested person shall have three (3) minutes to present a 
non-evidentiary policy statement. Participants with similar interests or comments are 
requested to make joint presentations, and participants are requested to avoid 
redundant comments. Participants who would like additional time must submit their 
request to the Advisory Team no later than May 30, 2016. Additional time may be 
provided at the discretion of the Advisory Team (prior to the hearing) or the San Diego 
Water Board (at the hearing) upon a showing that additional time is necessary. 
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PROPOSED Hearing Procedure 
KB Home 
Settler's Point Project 
ACL Complaint No. R9-2016-0092 

April 22, 2016 

In accordance with Title 23, California Code of Regulations, section 648.4, the San 
Diego Water Board endeavors to avoid surprise testimony or evidence. Absent a 
showing of good cause and lack of prejudice to the parties, the San Diego Water Board 
may exclude evidence and testimony that is not submitted in accordance with this 
hearing procedure. Excluded evidence and testimony will not be considered by the San 
Diego Water Board and will not be included in the administrative record for this 
proceeding. PowerPoint and other visual presentations may be used at the hearing, but 
their. content may not exceed the scope of other submitted written material. A copy of 
such material intended to be presented at the hearing must be submitted to the 
Advisory Team at or before the hearing for inclusion in the administrative record. 
Additionally, any witness who has submitted written testimony for the hearing shall 
appear at the hearing and affirm that the written testimony is true and correct, and shall 
be available for cross-examination. 

Request for Pre-hearing Conference 
A designated party may request that a pre-hearing conference be held before the 
hearing in accordance with Water Code section 13228.15. A pre-hearing conference 
may address any of the matters described in subdivision (b) of Government Code 
section 11511.5. Requests must contain a description of the issues proposed to be 
discussed during that conference, and must be submitted to the Advisory Team, with a 
copy to all other designated parties, no later than 5:00p.m. on May 24, 2016. 

Evidentiary Objections 
Any designated party objecting to written evidence or exhibits submitted by another 
designated party must submit a written objection so that it is received by 5:00p.m. on 
May 30, 2016, to the Advisory Team with a copy to all other designated parties. The 
Advisory Team will notify the parties about further action to be taken on such objections 
and when that action will be taken. 

Evidentiary Documents and File 
The Complaint and related evidentiary documents are on file and may be inspected or 
copied at the San Diego Water Board office at 2375 Northside Drive, Suite 100, San 
Diego, California 92108. This file shall be considered part of the official administrative 
record for this hearing. Other submittals received for this proceeding will be added to 
this file and will become a part of the administrative record absent a contrary ruling by 
the San Diego Water Board. Many of these documents are also posted online at 
www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego. Although the web page is updated regularly, to 
ensure access to the latest information, you may contact Catherine Hagan, Senior Staff 
Counsel. 

Questions 
Questions concerning this proceeding may be addressed to Catherine Hagan, Senior 
Staff Counsel. 
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WAIVER FORM 
FOR ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY COMPLAINT 

By signing this waiver, I affirm and acknowledge the following: 

I am duly authorized to represent KB Home (Discharger) in connection with Administrative Civil Liability Complaint 
No. R9-2016-0092 (Complaint). I am informed that California Water Code section 13323, subdivision (b), states 
that, "a hearing before the regional board shall be conducted within ninety (90) days after the party has been 
served [with the complaint]. The person who has been issued a complaint may waive the right to a hearing." 

D OPTION 1: C!Jeck here if the Discharger waives the hearing requirement and will pay the liability. 

a. I hereby waive any right the Discharger may have to a hearing before the San Diego Water Board. 

b. I certify that upon approval of this settlement by the San Diego Water Board the Discharger will remit 
payment for the administrative civil liability imposed in the amount of eight hundred forty-eight 
thousand three hundred seventy-four dollars ($875,166) by check that references "ACL Complaint 
No. R9-2016-0092" made payable to the "State Water Pollution Cleanup and Abatement Account." 
Payment must be received within thirty (30) days of approval by the San Diego Water Board at the 
following address: State Water Resources Control Board, Accounting Office, Attn: ACL Payment, P.O. 
Box 1888, Sacramento, CA 95812-1888. A copy of the check must also be received by the San Diego 
Water Board at 2375 Northside Drive, Suite 100, San Diego, CA 92108 within thirty (30) days of 
approval via U.S. Postal Service or e-mail to SanDiego@waterboards.ca.gov, attention CW-
826199:cmeans. 

c. I understand the payment of the above amount constitutes a proposed settlement of the Complaint, 
and that any settlement will not become final until after the thirty (30) day public notice and comment 
period. Should the San Diego Water Board receive significant new information or comments from any 
source (excluding the San Diego Water Board's Prosecution Team) during this comment period, the 
San Diego Water Board's Assistant Executive Officer may withdraw the complaint and issue a new 
complaint. I understand that this proposed settlement may be subject to approval by the Executive 
Officer of the San Diego Water Board, and that the San Diego Water Board may consider this 
proposed settlement in a public meeting or hearing. I also understand that approval of the settlement 
will result in the Discharger having waived the right to contest the allegations in the Complaint and the 
imposition of civil liability. · 

d. I understand that payment of the above amount is not a substitute for compliance with applicable laws 
and that continuing violations of the type alleged in the Complaint may subject the Discharger to further 
enforcement, including additional civil liability. 

D OPTION 2: Check here if the Discharger waives the 90-day hearing requirement in order to engage in 
settlement discussions. I hereby waive any right the Discharger may have to a hearing before the San Diego 
Water Board within ninety (90) days after service of the complaint, but I reserve the ability to request a hearing in 
the future. I certify that the Discharger will promptly engage the San Diego Water Board Prosecution Team in 
settlement discussions to attempt to resolve the outstanding violation(s). By checking this box, the Discharger 
requests that the San Diego Water Board delay the hearing so that the Discharger and the Prosecution Team can 
discuss settlement. It remains within the discretion of the San Diego Water Board to agree to delay the hearing. 
Any proposed settlement is subject to the conditions described above under "Option 1." 

D OPTION 3: Check here if the Discharger waives the 90-day hearing requirement in order to extend the 
hearing date and/or hearing deadlines. Attach a separate sheet with the amount of additional time 
requested and the rationale. I hereby waive any right the Discharger may have to a hearing before the San 
Diego Water Board within ninety (90) days after service of the complaint. By checking this box, the Discharger 
requests that the San Diego Water Board delay the hearing and/or hearing deadlines so that the Discharger may 
have additional time to prepare for the hearing. It remains within the discretion of the San Dieg<;:> Water Board to 
approve the extension. 

(Print Name and Title) 

(Signature) (Date) 
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